=

WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP BOARD
SAMEL’S FARM EVENT CENTER/BARN
88298 Skegemog Point Road, Williamsburg, Ml 49690
231-267-5141 Phone

SPECIAL MEETING
APPROVED MINUTES
Tuesday, July 8, 2025, 10:00 a.m.

CALL TO ORDER:
Supervisor Slopsema called the meeting to order at 10:09 a.m.
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

ROLL CALL:
Clerk Hoeksema called roll.

Present:
Supervisor Linda Slopsema
Clerk Wendy Hoeksema

Absent:

Treasurer Jill Koester (unexcused)
Trustee Tim Arends (excused)
Trustee Randy Mielnik (excused)

SET/ADJUST MEETING AGENDA:
Ms. Slopsema made a motion to approve the Agenda as presented. Ms. Hoeksema seconded the motion.
VOTE: YEAS: All. NAYES: None. Motion carried.

DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST: None.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

Mr. Mark Taylor: Mr. Taylor stated there was an attempt four years ago to get the road fixed. He appreciates
today’s attendance and moving forward.

Mr. Richard Gold: Mr. Gold stated there are two issues; the quality of the road and speeds on the road. The
Township can advocate on behalf of its residents. The State Police can change the speed limit. Better roads
may result in people driving faster. He would like to see a commitment from the Township regarding speed
limits.

Ms. Sue McRaven: Ms. McRaven used to bike on the road and experienced injuries. There is no shoulder on
the road, and drivers go by so fast that gravel is sprayed on her.

Ms. Robin Kettewell: Ms. Kettewell stated the turn from M-72 onto Skegemog Point Road needs a yellow
blinking light at the corner intersection.

Ms. Heidi Vollmuth: Ms. Vollmuth is not a Skegemog Point Road resident. Elmer’s became a people-owned
company in 2022. She suggested Elmer’'s PR Department be contacted regarding this issue.

Ms. Cheryl Kreger: Ms. Kreger asked how many members must be present to achieve a quorum and whether
this is a valid meeting. Supervisor Slopsema stated that three members must be present for a quorum;

1 Whitewater Township Board Special Meeting, 7-15-25



N

however, today’s meeting is not about decision making but rather giving the public an opportunity to ask
questions of the Road Commission. This is an informational session today.

Ms. Becky Fries: Ms. Fries stated she is a runner and potholes on the road are a problem. Speed has always
been the biggest concern. Drivers come very close to her as she is running.

AGENDA ITEMS AS LISTED IN THE SPECIAL MEETING NOTICE:

PUBLIC DISCUSSION OF SKEGEMOG POINT EROAD IMPROVEMENT:

Presentation by Mr. Dan Watkins, Grand Traverse County Road Commission Manager and
Questions & Answers:

Ms. Slopsema introduced Mr. Joe Slonecki, Grand Traverse County Interim County Highway Engineer. Mr.
Watkins was unable to attend due to illness. Mr. Joe Slonecki attended in his absence. Mr. Slonecki
explained there have been numerous estimates in the past for this road project. Presently, two proposals
have been made to the Township regarding Skegemog Point Road. There are two distinct segments of the
road:

Portion 1:
M-72 to Samels Farm. This section has several subdivisions and other roads that meet Skegemog Point Road.
It has different characteristics from the second portion.

It is proposed to do a wedge & chip seal on this portion of the road. He explained this process. The estimate
is $425k. A more extensive repair would be close to $1m.

Portion 2:

From Samels Farm to the end of the road. This portion is more driveway oriented with less access from side
roads than the first portion of road. This would be a crush & shape process. He explained this process. The
estimate is $485k.

A Special Assessment District (SAD) would be assessed.

There is no proposal to make anything wider. A clear zone would be made to allow adequate room for driver
recovery.

Supervisor Slopsema noted there would be some canopy trimming, removal of trees and light ditching in order
to better divert water. Mr. Slonecki explained the importance of water mitigation to minimize how water
damages asphailt.

Segment 3 after the turn to the water is not being proposed at this time. There was a crush & shape estimate
five years ago. Ms. Slopsema stated this would add approximately 10% to the cost. The last 400’ to the Point
need much repair. There was public discussion about this portion, which many citizens believe to be the worst
part of the road.

There is concern about the shoulders of the road and existing damage. Mr. Slonecki explained the repair of
the shoulders. Residents inquired about drainage issues on other roads and the ability of fire trucks to get to
the water.

One resident inquired about frost laws and who enforces them. Mr. Slonecki explained weight limits for

operation of heavy trucks. Residents are concerned about heavy trucks on the road as compared to the class
rating of the road.

2 Whitewater Township Board Special Meeting, 7-15-25



w

Residents inquired about the maintenance commitment from the Road Commission and lifespan of the road.
Mr. Slonecki stated residents will be responsible for maintenance costs. The lifespan of a wedge & chip
project is 10 years and a crush & shape is 20 years. Preventive maintenance is necessary to ensure the
lifespan.

Skegemog Point Road is considered a local road. Mr. Slonecki explained the fuel tax expenditure limitations
on local road projects. He explained that additional funding would need to come from another source.

A resident inquired if Skegemog Point Road is on a priority list with the Road Commission. There is no long-
term project list beyond primary roads; the typical scenario for local roads is when a township approaches the
Road Commission.

Mr. Taylor stated he met with Mr. Watkins. The County needs to know about road issues. Supervisor
Slopsema stated the Grand Traverse County Road Commission portal has a tab where residents can request
repairs to have a ticket generated.

A resident inquired about the process to resurface Baggs Road at the boat launch on Skegemog Lake. Mr.
Slonecki stated Baggs road is in the jurisdiction of Kalkaska County, and there was an intergovernmental
agreement between Kalkaska and Grand Traverse County Road Commissions. It was a crush & shape
project. The gentleman mentioned the fire access point on Segment 3 and safety, service and erosion issues
if that section is not repaired. He state a poor fix was done previously. Supervisor Slopsema discussed this
with Chief Morgan who stated the water pipe there is not used; the turbo hose goes directly into the lake. It
was also noted this launch is not a DNR launch. Access at lake road ends was discussed.

A resident referenced the $910k cost of the project with residents responsible for $238k through a Special
District Assessment. He asked if that is fair and consistent with other local road projects. Mr. Slonecki
responded the Road Commission is typically responsible for a maximum of 25% of the cost; however, in this
case is assuming 50% of the project cost. The Township would pay for 25%. Historically, Townships have not
paid into these projects. Residents would pay for 25% through the SAD; Mr. Slonecki stated Townships with a
SAD are paying less percentage than those that do not have one. The Road Commission would incur the
engineering of the project.

Supervisor Slopsema notified all residents on Skegemog Point Road as well as Drake Lane and Fairview as
the only access to those roads is via Skegemog Point Road. The Special Assessment District will be finalized
through a detailed process with the Township attorney. There are approximately 159 parcels.

A resident asked who would be responsible to ensure costs don’t overrun and how this is addressed.
Supervisor Slopsema stated there are two Public Hearings with estimates; if costs go over, another Public
Hearing is held for residents. In order to approve the Special Assessment District, 51% or more of parcel
owners need to support it. In response to an inquiry if the SAD is rejected by residents, the Township does not
have funds to pay for the project, and pothole patches of the road would continue.

At this time, the Township is determining whether 51% or more of parcel owners would support the SAD.
Supervisor Slopsema stated the SAD is for the entire road and divided among all parcels. The attorney would
determine the exact amounts through their assessment and calculations.

Mr. Slonecki reported the road right-of-way under the jurisdiction of the Road Commission is 66’ wide. The
Shoulders are 5-6’ off the asphalt. To maintain the integrity of the road, some trees will be affected. He also
detailed the width and depth of ditches.

Mr. Taylor stated he spoke with the Road Commission Manager four years ago. Mr. Watkins stated they have
made concessions to reduce the SAD by nearly half of the previous amount, estimating the SAD would be
approximately $2k over 10 years, per parcel owner.

3 Whitewater Township Board Special Meeting, 7-15-25



I

One resident spoke out that the 10-year SAD amount is reasonable. Another stated if it isn’t done now, it will
never be done.

Supervisor Slopsema indicated that Elmer's would be assessed the same amount as other parcel owners in
the SAD. They are not they exempt from it. The only exemption is a school.

A resident inquired about removable speed bumps and who would be enforcing speed on the road. Mr.
Slonecki stated the Road Commission would not be building speed bumps, and enforcement is through the
Sheriff. Removable speed bumps would be removed; anyone who places them in the road way, or illegal
signage, is liable for any damages.

A resident relayed that at a meeting years ago, a similar proposal stated 30’ of trees would be removed. She
believes the responses today regarding tree removal have been vague and wonders what is different this time.
Mr. Slonecki recalled that meeting, stating at the time the road would be narrow if the trees remained. There
are engineering judgments and standards, depending on traffic volume and speed. The trees can be a factor
in reducing speed. The clear zone does allow for some vagueness. He mentioned roads degrading through
water. Removal of trees allows wet areas to dry quicker and allows for ditches and drainage. There are
concessions that can be made.

Mr. Taylor asked how the speed of a nicer road can be managed. Clerk Hoeksema explained that the
Township requested a speed study of Skegemog Point Road and Church/Vinton Roads. This would be
conducted by the Michigan State Police. Increased traffic and speeds are issues on these roads. The
Township has discussed purchase of a speed radar sign. She is also hoping to have a Community Police
Officer (CPO) in the Township.

Mr. Slonecki explained new legislation allows a Township to be involved in a speed study and how one is
conducted. Once the speed limit is determined, a Traffic Control Order is written and filed with the County
Clerk, and it is enforceable. If an individual puts up a sign without a Traffic Control Order, there are fines and
possible jail penalties.

Mr. Taylor stated law enforcement does not travel Skegemog Point Road. Samels has events at their property,
often with school bus loads of children. He has spoken with the Grand Traverse County Sheriff asking for
patrols; however, has not seen them.

A resident inquired about the road design and how much of a paved berm would be available to pedestrians.
Mr. Slonecki stated a 5’ paved shoulder is constructed. There is 1’ of pavement outside of the white line.

A resident asked those in attendance to share the community’s concerns about speed, pedestrians and
reduced visibility on Skegemog Point Road.

A resident inquired how long they have to return the signed forms from the Township. Supervisor Slopsema
stated there is no time limit; however, if forms are not returned, time may expire for any work to be done in
2026. The Road Commission is on a four-year rotation for funds allocated for the benefit of the Township. Mr.
Watkins is allowing the Township to borrow two years into the future to assist paying for it. The resident
believes parcel owners are lucky to get this offer and urged them to make a decision.

Ms. Slopsema responded in the affirmative to a question whether it is legal to include parcels that do not abut
to Skegemog Point Road.

A resident stated there is a high population of Short-term Rentals on the north end of the Point and many
contractors in the area that fly down the road. She has withessed dangerous situations with both. She

4 Whitewater Township Board Special Meeting, 7-15-25



(2]

encouraged residents to oppose the proposed Short-term Rental Ordinance in the Township. Other residents
agreed.

Another resident commented they were residents in Brighton where a similar project was approved. It was a
five-mile, $15m project where residents were assessed $15k. He supports this SAD and the cost.

Supervisor Slopsema stated all parcel owners were mailed a form regarding the proposed SAD. If they did not
receive theirs or cannot locate it, one may be picked up in the back of the room. It is important to sign and
return it to the Clerk.

Mr. Taylor stated he is a Board Member of Samels Farm, and at their Board meeting last night, it was a
unanimous vote to approve and put two parcels of Samels on the project.

Another resident referenced work done on Rapid City Road resulted in tar on cars; he encouraged the
Township to use a reputable contractor.

A resident inquired whether the Township will see how gracious Elmer’s might be given the wear and tear their
equipment causes on the road. Ms. Slopsema is willing to speak with them. Mr. Slonecki stated they are
eligible to bid on the project.

Supervisor Slopsema noted to attendees the required 51% approval of the project is based on 51% of the
parcels, not merely 51% of the returned forms.

A resident inquired when the public would be informed about the number of trees affected. Mr. Slonecki stated
that because the trees are in an easement, homeowners would be notified of any trees that would be
impacted. This is part of the engineering process. Supervisor Slopsema reiterated there are two Public
Hearings in the process where residents can express objections. She also explained the process of a Public
Hearing.

BOARD COMMENTS/DISCUSSION: None.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

Mr. John Kreger: Mr. Kreger’s family has been here for 51 years with children and grandchildren. The speeds
are scary, and he is concerned about safety. He encouraged residents to approve this proposal.

ADJOURNMENT:

Ms. Slopsema made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Ms. Hoeksema seconded the motion.
VOTE: YEAS: All. NAYES: No. Motion carried.

The meeting was adjourned at 11:38 a.m.

Submitted by Kay Z. Held, Recording Secretary

5 Whitewater Township Board Special Meeting, 7-15-25



